9

**THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA**  
**In The Court of Appeals**

---

**RECEIVED**

**APPEAL FROM BERKELEY COUNTY**  
**Court of Common Pleas**

---

**JAN 28 2016**

**SC Court of Appeals**

Deadra L. Jefferson, Circuit Court Judge

---

Appellate Case No. 2015-001452

Levern McCray,.....Appellant,

v.

Jose W. Valle,.....Respondent,

Of Whom Allstate Insurance Company and Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company are Respondents.

**FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT**

---

Pamela R. Mullis  
MULLIS LAW FIRM  
1229 Elmwood Avenue  
Post Office Box 7757  
Columbia, SC 29202  
(803) 799-9577

**COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT**

##

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Did the judge err in ruling as a matter of law that the Order awarding penalties pursuant to the rejected Offer of Judgment statute could only be imposed on the named uninsured driver and not upon the insurers?
2. Did the judge err in refusing to permit execution of the judgment of Costs and Interest from the rejected offer of judgment against the insurers on the basis that imposition of such penalties would improperly exceed the limits of the insurers' policies?
3. Did the judge err in deciding that the Order of penalties could not possibly be executed against the insurers with supplemental proceedings pursuant to Rule 69, SCRCP where such decision served to overrule the prior decision of another Circuit Court judge?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Plaintiff was injured in an automobile collision with an uninsured, drunk driver. Plaintiff brought suit in the name of the uninsured motorist and the case was defended by Plaintiff's uninsured motorist insurance providers. The defending insurers made an Offer of Judgment which was rejected by Plaintiff, Plaintiff made an Offer of Judgment to the insurers, which was rejected by the insurers. The jury verdict resulting from the liability trial far exceeded Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment which the insurers had rejected. Therefore, Plaintiff sought and obtained an Order of costs and interest as the result of the insurers' rejection of his Offer of Judgment. Upon Plaintiff's attempting to enforce the judgment through a Rule to Show Cause, his request for a Rule to Show Cause was denied and Plaintiff was instructed the proper procedure was to proceed with execution of the judgment and supplemental proceedings if necessary, under Rule 69, SCRPC. Upon Plaintiff's obtaining an Execution of Judgment against the property of the insurers, the insurers moved to quash the Execution Against Property. After a hearing on May, 2010, Judge Deadra Jefferson granted both insurers' Motions to Quash, finding that Plaintiff could not properly execute the judgment of Offer of Judgment costs and interests against his insurers. This appeal follows.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the early morning hours of December 20, 2008, 55 year old Levern McCray, Plaintiff, was driving to his job as a heavy equipment operator at a large construction site. Plaintiff was driving near Moncks Corner, South Carolina, when his vehicle was hit head on by a vehicle driven by a drunk driver. The uninsured drunk driver, Jose Valle, crossed the center line as he came around a curve and hit the Plaintiff's vehicle head on, causing a collision between the two vehicles and injuries to the Plaintiff. Plaintiff had to be cut from his vehicle by emergency

personnel using the Jaws of Life. He suffered injuries including a fractured left leg and ankle, requiring surgical implantation of hardware into his leg; injuries to his head including loss of consciousness - - a concussion/traumatic brain injury; and injuries to his neck, lower back, left knee, chest, laceration to his right thumb, and injuries to both his shoulders. These injuries resulted in permanent impairment to Plaintiff and difficulty walking, as a result of which he suffered wage loss and a loss of the ability to earn wages in the future.

Plaintiff had contracted with two insurers providing uninsured motorist coverage. Defendant Allstate Insurance Company (Allstate) insured Plaintiff at the time of the subject accident pursuant to a valid auto insurance policy with \$100,000.00 in uninsured bodily injury coverage on the vehicle in the accident and \$100,000.00 on two additional vehicles at Plaintiff's residence, for a total of \$300,000.00 in available coverage for damages both actual and punitive, including an additional owed \$2,000.00 in personal injury protection. Defendant Liberty Mutual Insurance Company (Liberty Mutual) also insured Plaintiff at the time of the subject accident pursuant to an uninsured insurance policy with \$50,000.00 in available excess coverage for actual and punitive damages and \$10,000.00 in medical payments coverage.

On April 14, 2010, Counsel for the insured Plaintiff wrote to the insurers in an attempt to settle the claims related to the December 20, 2008 accident. Counsel indicated that her letter was an attempt to settle the matter fairly and without resort to litigation. Counsel reminded the insurer that the at-fault driver was uninsured; driving drunk; and indisputably liable as he was driving under the influence when he crossed the center line to hit the Plaintiff's vehicle head on. Counsel advised that the insured was making a claim under his policy's uninsured motorist coverage which was in good standing and in effect at the time of the accident.

Counsel indicated that the insured was requesting that the insurers tender the entire policy limits without forcing their insured to resort to litigation. Counsel's letter reminded the insurers that their insured was trapped in the vehicle until extricated by the Fire Department with injuries including a fracture to the left ankle at the fibula and tibia. Along with her letter demand, Counsel included medical reports and a listing of the medical costs with a total "specials" to date of \$70,654.50. Counsel advised that Mr. McCray had continued pain and that his permanent impairments resulting from the accident had been rated at 28% to the left leg and 20% to the left foot. Counsel advised the insurer that the insured's occupation in construction required him to be on his feet throughout the work day and that the injuries sustained in the accident had prevented his successfully completing his work and that the injuries were preventing this exceptional employee from advancing in what had, prior to the accident, been a very successful career in construction as a heavy equipment operator.

Plaintiff demanded the tender of the entire available coverage from both Defendants Allstate Insurance Company and Liberty Mutual for actual and punitive damages pursuant to their contracts of insurance. Plaintiff's demand of the policy limits was reasonable and a duty properly owed by both insurers pursuant to their contracts with Plaintiff. Said contracts include not only the express duties that the Defendants treat the Plaintiff fairly, reasonably, and in good faith evaluate the Plaintiff's claim pursuant to the contract of insurance, but also include the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. Nevertheless, neither insurer tendered the policy limits within the coverage for which he had contracted to Plaintiff as demanded.

As required by Section 38-77-140, Plaintiff's Summons and Complaint was brought in the name of the uninsured motorist, Jose Valle, with copies of the pleadings served upon insurers, Allstate and Liberty in the manner provided by law, i.e., through the Department of

Insurance, on May 21, 2010. (R. 17). Allstate answered on October 19, 2010 (R. 28); Liberty answered on September 23, 2010 (R. 21). Thus the insurers each elected to defend the action pursuant to the uninsured motorist provision. Having elected to appear and defend the case in the name of the uninsured motorist, the defending carriers participated in discovery and conducted depositions. On January 18, 2011, the defending carriers served an Offer of Judgment against the Plaintiff for \$135,000.00. (R. 30). Plaintiff filed an Offer of Judgment against the insurers for \$300,000.00 on January 30, 2011, which was properly served pursuant to Rule 5, SCRCF, upon both defending uninsured carriers, Allstate and Liberty Mutual. (R. 33). Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment was not served upon the named defendant, uninsured motorist, Jose Valle, as Valle had made no Offer of Judgment and he had no authority to tender the defending insurers' available policy limits. (R. 34). Neither insurer accepted Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment within the policy limits.

Upon the insurers rejecting Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment, the liability action proceeded to a four-day jury trial, with the carriers appearing to defend the case in the name of the uninsured motorist, Jose Valle pursuant to Section 38-77-140. The jury awarded the Plaintiff a total of Six Hundred Forty Seven Thousand (\$647,000.00) Dollars in damages. Upon the appellate court's affirming the jury verdict on September 2, 2014, Plaintiff moved for an order of costs and interest pursuant to the rejected Offer of Judgment as provided by S.C. Code Ann. §15-35-400. (R. The carriers participated in the hearing on Plaintiff's motion for an award of Offer of Judgment costs and interest on September 11, 2012, represented by lead counsel for Allstate (R. 35; 38-43). Upon unsuccessfully arguing against the imposition of costs and interest from the rejected Offer of Judgment, the insurers made no request for reconsideration and took no appeal

from the January 14, 2013, Order awarding to Plaintiff costs and interest due to the rejected Offer of Judgment; however, the costs and interest ordered were not paid. (R. 11).

On September 18, 2014, Plaintiff filed a motion to enforce payment of the Offer of Judgment costs and interest as awarded almost two years earlier. (R. 89). The motion stated in relevant part “Therefore, Plaintiff respectfully moves for this Court to enforce the Order of Judgment and issue a Rule to Show Cause directly against the insurers ordering payment of the award pursuant to the statute; as the Plaintiff’s Insurers are duly licensed in the state of South Carolina and owe this valid Order for costs and pre-judgment interest – as penalties pursuant to the above statute and Order. The Plaintiff requests this Court issue an Order and a rule to show cause why the insurers Allstate and Liberty Mutual should not be required to comply with the terms and conditions of the Order of the Court filed on January 14, 2013, for the rejected offer of judgment, why it should not be held in contempt; and why it should not be required to pay the attorney’s fees and costs of Plaintiff for the institution and prosecution of this proceeding.” (R. 90).

On October 22, 2014, the parties appeared before Judge Kristi L. Harrington on Plaintiff’s Motion to Enforce Order of Judgment and for a rule to show cause against the insurers Allstate Insurance Company and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company (Appendix to ROA). On December 1, 2014, Judge Harrington issued her Order, instructing Plaintiff: “Under SCRC 69, the Court hereby finds that a writ of execution together with supplementary proceedings is the proper procedure to enforce the underlying judgment.” (R. 85). Having identified the correct procedure for Plaintiff to follow to enforce the award of Offer of Judgment costs and interest, Judge Harrington further indicated that the instant motion for a rule to show cause against the insurers was denied.

Accordingly, on February 2, 2015, Counsel for Plaintiff requested that the Clerk of Court issue an Execution against Property of the insurers and the Execution was issued on February 23, 2015 (R. 192). However, the Execution with supplemental proceedings Plaintiff had instituted were halted pending resolution of the insurers' February 10, 2015, Motion to Quash the Execution. (R. 230). After a hearing on May 12, 2015, the Insurers' motions to Quash Plaintiff's Writ of Execution was granted by Judge Jefferson. (R. 1). This appeal follows.

### ARGUMENT

I. **The insurers are responsible for the costs and interest awarded to Plaintiff as a penalty for the rejected offer of judgment.**

The uninsured motorist provision, South Carolina Code Ann. §38-77-150 (2002), requires that automobile insurance policies in South Carolina contain a provision "undertaking to pay the insured all sums which he is legally entitled to recover as damages from the owner or operator of the uninsured motor vehicle, within limits which may be no less than the requirements of Section 38-77-140." The referenced section, S.C. Code Ann. §38-77-140, provides "An automobile insurance policy may not be issued or delivered in this State...unless it contains a provision insuring the persons defined as insured against loss...imposed by law for damages arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of these motor vehicles...subject to limits **exclusive of interest and costs** with respect to each motor vehicle...." (emphasis added). The statute goes on to spell out the minimum limits required for automobile insurance in the state of South Carolina.

The uninsured motorist statute further provides,

"No action may be brought under the uninsured motorist provision unless copies of the pleadings in the action establishing liability are served in the manner provided by law upon the insurer writing the uninsured motorist provision. The insurer has the right to appear and defend in the name of the

uninsured motorist in any action which may affect its liability and has thirty days after service of process on it in which to appear.”

Thus, the statute required Plaintiff to bring suit in the name of the uninsured driver and to serve copies of his pleadings on his uninsured motorist carriers. The statute allowed, but did not require, the uninsured motorist carriers to appear and defend the claim “in the name of the uninsured motorist,” Jose Valle. Counsel for Plaintiff explained, “Because in South Carolina, we operate in the uninsured context in a legal fiction unlike most states in this country. We are not permitted to sue as a plaintiff the actual insurance company and....the insurance company elects to either defend the case in the name of the motorist pursuant to the statute....” (R. 78 line 16-79, line 3).

Pursuant to the mandate of S.C. Code Ann. §38-77-140, Plaintiff's Summons and Complaint was brought on May 21, 2010, in the name of the uninsured motorist, Jose Valle, with copies of the pleadings served upon the real parties in interest - - the insurers, Allstate and Liberty Mutual, through the Department of Insurance. (R. p. 17). Allstate Insurance Company and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company came within the jurisdiction of the Court upon being properly served with the Summons and Complaint in 2010-CP-08-1801. Allstate answered on October 19, 2010; Liberty answered on September 23, 2010 (R. 28). Thus, the insurers were properly served and each elected to defend the action pursuant to the above statute and subject themselves to the jurisdiction of the court. The defending carriers availed themselves of the jurisdiction of the Court as permitted by the uninsured motorist statute in their unsuccessful effort to avoid a jury verdict for Plaintiff at trial. Having lost the trial; having lost the appeal; and having failed in their arguments against the award to Plaintiff of Offer of Judgment costs and

interest as set out in the unappealed January 14, 2013, Order, the insurers were responsible to pay the costs and interest awarded as the result of the rejected offer of judgment. (R. 11).

The plain language of South Carolina's Offer of Judgment statute, §15-35-400, establishes Plaintiff's entitlement to costs and interest as set out and awarded by the January 14, 2013, Order. The statute provides that a Plaintiff is entitled to recover court costs and prejudgment interest where his rejected Offer of Judgment is exceeded by the jury verdict. Section 15-35-400(B), provides the Consequences of Non-acceptance:

If an offer of judgment is not accepted and the offeror obtains a verdict or determination at least as favorable as the rejected offer, the offeror shall be allowed to recover from the offeree: (1) any administrative, filing, or other court costs from the date of the offer until judgment; (2) if the offeror is a plaintiff, eight percent interest computed on the amount of the verdict or award from the date of the offer....

Thus, our legislature provided a statutory procedure whereby a party settling a claim by accepting an Offer of Judgment, thereby avoiding protracted litigation, is rewarded. In contrast, where a defending insurer rejects an Offer of Judgment, gambling on a defense verdict, if the gamble does not pay off and the verdict for the Plaintiff exceeds the Offer of Judgment the insurer had rejected, the insurer shall be required to pay to the Plaintiff costs and prejudgment interest. In this case, Plaintiff obtained a verdict well in excess of the Offer of Judgment the insurers had rejected and he was, therefore, entitled to costs and interest for the rejected Offer of Judgment pursuant to the plain terms of South Carolina Code §15-35-400(B). By her Order awarding costs and interest to Plaintiff, the trial judge properly found that, as the result of the verdict's exceeding the rejected Offer of Judgment, Plaintiff was entitled to an award of costs of \$ 3,247.01 and entitled to \$77,589.10 in interest according to the Offer of Judgment statute's provision requiring that interest be calculated from the date of the Offer of Judgment until the

date of the verdict. Here, the date of Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment was February 15, 2011; and the Offer of Judgment was directed to, served upon, and rejected by the insurers, Allstate and Liberty Mutual (R. 11-14).

Having rejected Plaintiff's Offer of Judgment in the amount of \$300,000, apparently as the result of their strategic decision to withhold the available policy limits, the insurers were bound under the terms of the Offer of Judgment statute to pay costs and interest upon the jury's returning a verdict for Plaintiff in an amount over \$600,000. Counsel for Plaintiff argued, "...they still owe the offer of judgment because they filed the offer of judgment against us. That's the purpose of the loser pays statute. That is the purpose of 15-35-400. They filed the offer of judgment against the Plaintiff and they owe the offer of judgment. The offer of judgment statute would be useless if they didn't owe it when they filed it against the Plaintiff." (R. 79, lines 15-24).

Indeed, if the insurers' interpretation of the Offer of Judgment statute and their argument that, because the liability case is captioned in the name of the uninsured driver, were correct, an insurance company would never be held responsible for the penalties imposed pursuant to its rejection of an Offer of Judgment in an uninsured motorist case. Under the insurers' theory, accepted by the trial judge, only the defendant driver named in the underlying liability lawsuit may be assessed penalties and interest for a rejected Offer of Judgment. Of course, plaintiffs are required to name the uninsured driver and not allowed to name the insurance company in the liability case.

"When interpreting a statute, the Court's primary function is to ascertain the intention of the legislature. The words used must be given their plain and ordinary meaning without resorting to subtle or forced construction to limit or expand the statute's operation." "The cardinal rule of

statutory construction is to ascertain and give effect to the intent of the legislature.” *Sloan Constr. Co. v. Southco Grassing, Inc.*, 395 S.C. 164, 170, 717 S.E.2d 603, 606 (2011). When interpreting a statute, the “language must also be read in a sense which harmonizes with its subject matter and accords with its general purpose.” *Jones v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co.*, 364 S.C. 222, 230, 612 S.E.2d 719, 723 (Ct. App. 2005); *Hitachi Data Sys. v. Leatherman*, 309 S.C. 174, 420 S.E.2d 843 (1992).

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