THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA **RECEIVED**
In the Court of Appeals

JAN 28 2016

APPEAL FROM BERKELEY COUNTY SC Court of Appeals
Court Of Common Pleas

The Honorable Deadra L. Jefferson, Judicial Circuit Court Judge
Case No.: 2012-CP-08-1801

Appellate Case No. 2015-001452

Lavern McCray.....Appellant,

v.

Jose W. Valle..... Respondent.

Of Whom Allstate Insurance Company is the Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ALLSTATE INSURANCE COMPANY

Morgan S. Templeton
WALL TEMPLETON & HALDRUP, PA
Post Office Box 1200
Charleston, South Carolina 29402
Tel: 843-329-9500

John T. Lay, Jr. (S.C. Bar No.64526)
Janice Holmes (S.C. Bar No. 75038)
GALLIVAN, WHITE & BOYD, P.A.
Post Office Box 7368

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

Rule 69, SCRPC. Clearly, Rule 69 provides that South Carolina law allows for two methods whereby a plaintiff may execute on a judgment: writ of execution and supplementary proceedings. *See Ex parte Wilson*, 367 S.C. 7, 14, 625 S.E.2d 205, 209 (2005) (explaining that in addition to execution on a judgment by “writs of execution issued to the sheriff,” “[s]upplementary proceedings also ‘furnish a means of reaching, in aid of the judgment, property beyond the reach of an ordinary execution, such as choses in action.’”) (quoting *Lynn v. Int’l Bhd. of Firemen & Oilers*, 228 S.C. 357, 362, 90 S.E.2d 204, 206 (1995)) and *Johnson v. Serv. Mgmt., Inc.*, 319 S.C. 165, 167, 459 S.E.2d 900, 902 (Ct. App. 1995), *aff’d*, 324 S.C. 198, 478 S.E.2d 63 (1996) (“[j]udgments are enforced by way of writs of execution issued to the sheriff” and “[i]f a judgment is

unsatisfied, the judgment creditor may institute supplementary proceedings to discover assets” and that “[i]n addition to their discovery functions, supplementary proceedings ‘furnish a means of reaching, in aid of the judgment, property beyond the reach of an ordinary execution, such as choses in action.’”). This rule and the case law interpreting the rule also necessarily presuppose the existence of a judgment.⁸

Here, there is no judgment as to Allstate. In considering the terms of the Offer of Judgment, the circuit court correctly determined that it “was specifically made as to Valle, not Allstate or Liberty Mutual.” (R. p. 3) Obviously recognizing this fact, Appellant attempts to argue that the entire lawsuit, and every other lawsuit involving uninsured, and potentially, underinsured motorist, are legal fictions thereby making the insurance carrier a “party” to the lawsuit. As the circuit court reasoned, “Legal fiction

⁸ Appellant also argues that the clear, unambiguous language of the Offer of Judgment statute, S.C. Code § 15-35-400, should be disregarded. Section 15-35-400 provides, in part:

[A]fter commencement of any civil action based upon contract or seeking the recovery of money damages...any party may...file with the clerk of the court a written offer of judgment signed by the offeror or his attorney, directed to the opposing party, offering to take judgment in the offeror’s favor, or as the case may be, to allow judgment to be taken against the offeror, for a sum stated therein, for property, or to the effect specified in the offer.

The statute clearly states that the offer of judgment is to be issued as to the “opposing party.” Contrary to Appellant’s arguments, nothing in the statute demonstrates that an offer of judgment can be issued as to a nonparty. The intent of the legislature is clear—offers of judgment can only be made as to parties. *See State v. Landis*, 362 S.C. 97, 102, 606 S.E.2d 503, 506 (Ct. App. 2004) (“When a statute’s language is plain and unambiguous, and conveys clear and definite meaning, there is no occasion for employing rules of statutory interpretation and a court has no right to look for or impose another meaning.”) (citing *City of Camden v. Brassell*, 326 S.C. 556, 486 S.E.2d 492 (Ct. App. 1997)). Applying the statute as written does not lead to an absurd result and does not negate the purpose underlying the statute. Appellant has a judgment that he is able to execute upon—against Valle, the tortfeasor and party who caused his injuries.

doesn't make them a party," and such an argument is not supported by South Carolina law. (R. p. 77, ll. 16-17)

The circuit court explained: "You can only execute judgments against parties. That's black letter precedent." (R. p. 77, ll. 17-18) Here, Appellant's judgment is against Valle, the tortfeasor who caused the harm complained of in the Complaint. The judgment following the trial was entered as to Valle. The Order of Judgment was issued as to Valle, the party to whom the Offer of Judgment was made. Valle is a real and known individual against whom Appellant was directed to proceed against to satisfy the judgment. Appellant has cited no South Carolina authority that is contrary to this black-letter precedent. Therefore, the circuit court's ruling should be affirmed. *See Hardaway Concrete Co. v. Hall Contracting Corp.*, 374 S.C. 216, 234, 647 S.E.2d 488, 497 (Ct. App. 2007) (citing *Joubert v. S.C. Dep't of Soc. Servs.*, 341 S.C. 176, 192-193, 534 S.E.2d 1, 9-10 (Ct. App. 2000)).

2. Appellant's arguments regarding a so-called "legal fiction" are unavailing and the uninsured motorist statute does not confer "party" status on Allstate.

As noted above, the Offer of Judgment and subsequent Order of Judgment were issued as to Valle. In an attempt to distract the Court from these facts, Appellant argues that just because Allstate provided uninsured motorist coverage to Appellant, it suddenly became a party to the tort lawsuit brought to determine liability and damages. Appellant improperly attempts to combine the tort lawsuit with a coverage lawsuit, which would involve issues related to the scope of coverage, such as whether there would be any obligation to pay in excess of the policy limits that have already been tendered, which is the very subject of Appellant's lawsuit currently pending in the United States District

Court of South Carolina captioned, *Levern McCray v. Allstate Insurance Company and Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company*.

The lawsuit against Valle does not create a legal fiction, and the case not was “nominally” captioned in his name. In cases involving a known uninsured motorist, the well-established procedure in South Carolina is to bring suit against the tortfeasor—the uninsured motorist—first, and then the insured, if necessary, may bring a second action to address any coverage issues that may have arisen. *See Laird v. Nationwide Ins. Co.*, 243 S.C. 388, 394, 134 S.E.2d 206, 209 (1964) (“Recovery under the uninsured endorsement is subject to the condition that the insured establish legal liability on the part of the uninsured motorist. Such an action is one *ex delicto* and the only issues to be determined therein are the liability and the amount of damage. After judgment is entered against the uninsured motorist, a direct action *ex contractu* can be brought to recover from the insurance company on its endorsement, and policy defenses may be properly raised by the insurance company.) (citing *Doe v. Brown*, 203 Va. 508, 125 S.E.2d 159 (Va. App. 1962) and *Rodgers v. Danko*, 204 Va. 140, 129 S.E.2d 828 (Va. App. 1963).⁹ The

⁹ A similar issue was addressed in South Carolina’s federal district court. The federal district court reasoned that under South Carolina law, the claims against the tortfeasor and the uninsured motorist carrier were not properly joined. In making this determination, the court considered the reasoning in *Laird* and explained:

...The sequential proceedings contemplated by the statute and explained in *Laird* provide Plaintiff with a full opportunity to present her case against the uninsured motorist (and owner) while also allowing the insurer a full opportunity to step into the shoes of the uninsured motorist to defend, all without joining the insurer in the action . . . Should a dispute then arise as to the extent to which the judgment against the uninsured motorist is *covered by the insurance contract* or whether any claims handling procedure was improper, that dispute may be handled in a separate action with no need to involve the uninsured motorist.

current lawsuit against Valle does not create a legal fiction. Rather, it is a necessary step in the process, and South Carolina precedent demonstrates that any potential coverage issues should not be addressed in this lawsuit.

As previously noted, Appellant did not previously raise issues regarding the interpretation of the uninsured motorist statute before the circuit court. Notwithstanding that fact, the interpretation that Appellant espouses is not in keeping with the plain language of the statute and previous South Carolina authority. There is no mystery surrounding the operation and meaning of the uninsured motorist statute. “Where the statute’s language is plain and unambiguous and conveys a clear and definite meaning, the rules of statutory interpretation are not needed and the court has no right to impose another meaning.” *Hodges v. Rainey*, 341 S.C. 79, 85, 533 S.E.2d 578, 581 (2000) (citing *In re Vincent J.*, 333 S.C. 233, 233, 509 S.E.2d 261, 262 (1998)). Further, “[w]hat a legislature says in the text of a statute is considered the best evidence of the legislative intent or will. Therefore, the courts are bound to give effect to the expressed intent of the legislature.” *Hodges*, 341 S.C. at 85, 533 S.E.2d at 581) (quoting Norman J. Singer, *Sutherland Statutory Construction* § 46.03 at 94 (5th ed. 1992)).

South Carolina courts have determined that the purpose of Section 38-77-150 is to provide for a mechanism to provide notice to an uninsured motorist carrier and does not confer status as a party on the uninsured motorist carrier. In addition, South Carolina courts have not treated the statute as conferring such status on a carrier. *See Franklin v. Devore*, 327 S.C. 418, 489 S.E.2d 651 (1997), cert. denied (1998) (determining that the

Pollock v. Goodwin, C/A No. 3:07-3983-CMC, 2008 WL 216381, *5 (D.S.C. Jan. 23, 2008).

plaintiff did not need to serve the insurer within the three-year statute of limitations period as if it were a party defendant because the statute was a notice statute). *See also Ex parte S.C. Farm Bureau Mut. Ins. Co.*, 314 S.C. 487, 431 S.E.2d 252 (1993), overruled on other grounds, (“Farm Bureau argues that the language ‘in the manner provided by law’ of § 38-77-160 mandates that it be served within three years, as must a party-defendant pursuant to § 15-3-30 (Supp. 1992). We disagree.”). The clear language of the statute does not make the insurers a party to the lawsuit involving the tortfeasor. In addition, South Carolina courts have not treated carriers in cases involving uninsured and underinsured issues as parties. Therefore, the circuit court correctly determined that Allstate and Liberty Mutual were not parties to the lawsuit against Valle.

Appellant’s reliance upon the decisions in *Broome v. Watts*, 319 S.C. 337, 461 S.E.2d 46 (1995) and *Crawford v. Henderson*, 56 S.C. 389, 395-397, 589 S.E.2d 204, 208-209 (Ct. App. 2003) is misplaced, and it is unclear how the courts’ reasoning in those cases support Appellant’s argument that Allstate is somehow a party to this lawsuit. In *Broome* the court explained that, under the underinsured motorist statute, the underinsured motorist carrier and the underinsured motorist have “separate and distinct” rights. *Broome*, 319 S.C. at 340, 461 S.E.2d at 48. The court determined that where the underinsured motorist settled with the plaintiff and waived a right to a jury trial, such waiver was not binding upon the insurer where the statute provided that after such a settlement, “the underinsured motorist insurer may assume control of the defense of action for its own benefit.” *Id.* at 339, 461 S.E.2d at 48. The court determined that “[t]he right to defend includes the right to a jury trial.” *Id.* at 340, 461 S.E.2d at 48. What the court did not state was that the underinsured motorist carrier was a party to the lawsuit.

Likewise, this Court in *Crawford* did not make such a leap. Rather, the Court reasoned “the attorney for the UIM carrier represents the carrier and not the named defendant” and that “[e]ven though the UIM carrier ‘steps into the shoes’ of the named defendant, the procedure is not in totality but merely to the point of coverage.” *Crawford*, 356 S.C. at 398, 589 S.E.2d at 209. The Court ultimately determined that “there was no direct relationship between the UIM carrier’s attorney and the named defendant.” *Id.* at 398, 589 S.E.2d at 209. Again, the Court did not determine that the underinsured motorist carrier was a party to the lawsuit.

As the circuit court astutely surmised, Appellant essentially argues that because the insurance companies are the entities with resources they should be considered parties simply based on that fact. *See* R. p. 84. That is not the law in South Carolina, and Appellant has failed to point to any authority of any other jurisdiction with a similar statutory scheme to support his contentions. Appellant’s argument contravenes the plain language of the statute and South Carolina law. The circuit court committed no error, and there is no basis to reverse the decision of the circuit court.

B. The circuit court correctly determined that Appellant could not modify the Order of Judgment.

Essentially, Appellant seeks to modify the Order of Judgment to change who would be responsible for satisfying the award of costs and interest. The circuit court correctly determined that the Order of Judgment could not be altered to apply to Allstate and Liberty Mutual versus Valle. Under South Carolina, [w]hether to grant or deny a motion under SCRCP 60(b) is within the sound discretion of the judge,” and “[a]bsent an abuse of discretion, an appellate court should not disturb the trial court’s discretionary

decision on appeal.” *Coleman v. Dunlap*, 306 S.C. 491, 494, 496, 413 S.E.2d 15, 17 (1992) (citing *Tri-Country Ice & Fuel Co. v. Palmetto Ice Co.*, 303 S.C. 237, 399 S.E.2d 779, 782 (1990)). Further, “[t]he power to open, modify or vacate a judgment is possessed solely by the court that rendered the judgment.” *Coleman*, 306 S.C. at 494, 413 S.E.2d at 17 (citing 46 Am. Jur.2d *Judgments*, § 681 (1969) and *Bagley v. Bagley*, 415 A.2d 1080 (Me. 1980)). Here, Appellant has made no showing that the circuit court abused its discretion in determining that the Order of Judgment could not be modified, nor can he do so. Therefore, the circuit court should be affirmed.

C. The circuit court’s grant of Allstate’s Motion did not overrule the prior order on Appellant’s Motion to Execute on Order of Judgment and Rule to Show Cause.

Appellant erroneously contends that the circuit court’s Order granting Allstate’s Motion overruled the court’s previous order denying his Motion to Execute on Order of Judgment and Rule to Show Cause. (Appellant’s Brief, pp. 22-25) Appellant’s contention demonstrates a fundamental misunderstanding of the court’s order on his motion and of South Carolina law regarding execution on judgments.

As previously explained, to execute on a judgment, the judgment creditor actually needs a judgment against the party against whom the judgment creditor is attempting to execute. Appellant does not have a judgment against Allstate against which he could execute. If the court’s ruling on this issue was unclear to Appellant regarding whom the writ of execution could be issued and the supplemental proceedings could be had, Appellant had the opportunity to seek clarification of the order, which he did not. Allstate is not a party against which Appellant has a judgment. Furthermore, because Allstate was not a party to the lawsuit, the court would not have had jurisdiction to issue

any order directed as to its property. *See Green Tree Servicing, LLC v. Adams*, 375 S.C. 583, 586, 654 S.E.2d 100, 102 (Ct. App. 2007) (“A court may not act against a party without personal jurisdiction.”) (citing *BB&T v. Taylor*, 369 S.C. 548, 551, 633 S.E.2d 501, 503 (2006)). Therefore, the circuit court’s grant of Allstate’s Motion is consistent with its earlier ruling and should be affirmed.

D. Appellant’s contentions that Allstate has an obligation to pay the entire judgment is not properly before this Court and is not supported under South Carolina law.

Appellant contends throughout his brief that Allstate and Liberty Mutual are obligated to pay the entire judgment on behalf of Valle. Appellant’s contentions are not supported by South Carolina law and this issue is not properly before this Court.¹⁰ *See Hardaway Concrete Co.*, 374 S.C. at 234, 647 S.E.2d at 497 (determining that where the matter was not addressed in the final order and the party did not file a Rule 59(e) SCRCF motion for reconsideration the issues was not preserved for appellate review) (citing *Staubes v. City of Folly Beach*, 339 S.C. 406, 529 S.E.2d 543, 546 (2000)).

Even if this issue were properly preserved for appellate review, the issue of coverage under the policy is not an issue properly considered in connection with this lawsuit. *See Laird*, 243 S.C. at 394, 134 S.E.2d at 209. Furthermore, under South Carolina, the law governing policy interpretation and application is certainly not novel and does not support Appellant’s contentions.¹¹ Insurance policies are subject to the general rules of contract

¹⁰ The circuit court’s Order did not address this issue, and as previously noted Appellant did not seek clarification regarding the issue pursuant to Rule 59(e).

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